Beaufort County Library BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING Minutes – January 13, 2016 – 4:00 pm

The first scheduled meeting for 2016 was held at the Hilton Head Branch Library.

<u>Trustees</u>: Bernard Kole, *Chair*; Joseph Bogacz, Peggy Martin, Brenda Ladson Powell, and Lynne Miller.

Absent: Eileen Fitzgerald Vice-Chair, Laura Sturkie, Linda MacDonald, Deborah Johnson, and Anna Maria Tabernik

County Staff: Monica Spells, Assistant County Administrator-Civic Engagement and Outreach.

<u>Library Staff</u>: Ray McBride, Library Director; Ileana Herrick, Administrative Technician.

Mr. Kole, *Chairman*, announced the absence of a quorum. There were only five members out of ten present at the meeting.

<u>Call to Order</u>: The meeting was called to order at 4:06 p.m.

<u>Pledge of Allegiance</u>: Mr. Kole led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Public Comment: None.

Minutes of November 18, 2015: The minutes were approved as written on a motion from Mr. Bogacz, and a second from Ms. Miller. (To be reapproved at next meeting with a quorum present).

Correspondence/Memberships: The Board has eleven authorized positions; ten are filled.

Mr. Kole stated that this is a regular meeting and it has been advertised as required by State Law through the County website.

<u>Library Director's Report</u>: Mr. McBride presented his report which summarized:

- Branch Security Report
- Proposed circulation policy changes
- Personnel Update
- Projects Update

Branch Security report: 'Hold-up buttons' have been installed at the front circulation and children desks in Bluffton and Hilton Head branches. The installation of a 'hold-up button' is being scheduled at Lobeco Branch.

TO VIEW VIDEO OF FULL DISCUSSION OF THIS MEETING PLEASE VISIT

<u>Proposed circulation policy</u>: Mr. McBride will be presenting the proposed policy revisions at the next board meeting since there is no quorum.

Personnel update: Organizational Chart is attached.

- There are currently five vacant positions in the Library system.
- Twelve new hires and five promoted in the past six months.

<u>Project Updates</u>: *Hoopla* usage is increasing weekly. A cost analysis will be made at the end of this fiscal year. We are still within the budget allocated for this fiscal year.

Cardholders: 1,000Circulated items: 5,000

<u>Kajeet Smartspot</u>: *Pilot Program* will be implemented at Lobeco and St. Helena Library. The project consists of ten students (who are previously approved by the School District and Library) who will check out the hotspot devices for 30 day trial. The School District and the Library require feedback from students/families. Applications are being received to participate in this project.

Adult program analysis: The board will review the attached report. Mr. McBride pointed out the 'Recommendation: where should we take our adult programming this year' included on the last page of the report.

New hours: The new library hours are being well received.

<u>Inventory</u>: The Beaufort Branch is conducting a test project. More information will be available at the next board meeting.

<u>List of Best sellers titles & the estimated waiting time</u>: Wait times have been reduced for best sellers and other items. In some cases the wait time has been reduced from 90 days or more to one week.

<u>Financial Reports</u>: Mr. McBride presented the Beaufort County Finance (for the Library) expenditure report through January, 2016.

<u>Library Director's expenditure reports</u>: (Attachment) McBride presented to the Board a report which summarized the *library systems expenditures to date*. He also mentioned that the report of special funds has been summarized into one page.

FY 2017 Projection: Attached. Mr. McBride presented the board a detailed proposed FY 2017

budget projection for their review.

<u>Miscellaneous</u>: Mr. Kole listed the Board meeting Schedule 2016 (attachment). The board voted to accept the board of trustees meeting dates for 2016 in the last meeting in November 2015.

Committee Reports:

TO VIEW VIDEO OF FULL DISCUSSION OF THIS MEETING PLEASE VISIT

<u>Advocacy Committee</u>: Ms. Miller attended the Beaufort Chambers Regional Luncheon in early January. She had the opportunity to speak with State Representatives and Senators at the event.

<u>Finance Committee</u>: The committee and Mr. McBride met prior to the board meeting to review the director's expenditure report.

<u>Foundation</u>: Contributions to the Foundation have increased overall from last year. *Thank you* notes are being sent as soon as donations are received followed with the tax contribution letters. New methodology for achieving endowment goals along with mission statement will be developed

Friends of the Library (FOL):

- <u>Beaufort Branch</u>: Ms. Martin reported the success of the *Books Sandwiched In* event at USCB Center with over 200 attending. Friends will not have a Spring Book Sale since they are doing very well in the bookstore (Beaufort Branch Downtown).
- Bluffton Branch: None.
- <u>Hilton Head Branch:</u> The Friends met on Tuesday January 12. Ms. Miller mentioned that the volunteer luncheon will be held March the 16th and the program will be '*Coloring*'. This Thursday the film seminar will begin with the BIG READ movie "Their Eyes were watching God".

<u>School liaison:</u> Mr. McBride will be doing a presentation to County School District media specialists on February 4th about library services.

Mr. Kole appointed Ms. Powell to the School Liaison Committee.

<u>Policies and Procedures: Proposed Circulation Policy</u> will be reviewed by the committee prior to the next meeting so the board will be ready to vote. Members of the committee will give a recommendation to the board. Mr. McBride added that this will be a system wide policy once approved.

<u>Strategic Planning Committee</u>: The next committee meeting will be rescheduled to a later date; To Be Announced.

The meeting was adjourned at 4:50 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Ray McBride Library Director